

# Northside Adventure Gamers Association (NAGA)

An incorporated association charter and framework

# CONTENTS

ASSOCIATION RULES OF NORTHSIDE ADVENTURE GAMERS ASSOCIATION (NAGA)		2
1.	*DEFINITIONS	2
2.	*Preliminary	
3.	*Alteration of rules	3
4.	*CHARITABLE PURPOSES AND NOT-FOR-PROFIT STATUS	3
li	ndemnity	3
5.	* FUNDS AND ASSETS	4
6.	* FINANCIAL YEAR	4
7.	* RECORD-KEEPING	4
P	Privacy Statement	5
8.	* CONTRACTS	5
9.	* MEMBERSHIP	5
10.	* REGISTER OF MEMBERS	7
11.	* MEMBERS' ACCESS TO DOCUMENTS	7
12.	* THE COMMITTEE	8
13.	* DUTIES OF THE COMMITTEE	9
14.	* COMMITTEE MEETINGS	10
15.	* GENERAL MEETINGS OF MEMBERS	10
E	Dispute resolution process	12
E	Disciplining members	12
16.	* WINDING UP	13
17.	* SPECIFIC ASSOCIATION RULES	13
12	MEMBERSHID FEES	15

# ASSOCIATION RULES OF NORTHSIDE ADVENTURE GAMERS ASSOCIATION (NAGA)

Australian Business Number (ABN): Not applied for yet.

An incorporated association

#### 1. \*DEFINITIONS

1.1 In these rules, words and phrases have the meaning set out below:

ACNC means the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission.

ACNC Act means Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 (Cth) as amended from time to time.

AGM means annual general meeting.

association means the incorporated association described in rule 2.

committee and committee member(s) means the association's committee of management and the members of the committee of management respectively (see rule 12.2).

general meeting means the meetings of members of the association as described in rule 15, consisting of AGMs and special general meetings.

purposes means the charitable purposes of the association as described in rule 4.1.

registered charities means charities registered with the ACNC.

special resolution means a resolution of members:

- of which at least 21 days' notice of the meeting at which it will be considered has been given to members, and
- that is passed at a general meeting by 75% or more of the members voting (who are eligible to vote), voting in favour of it.

#### \*PRELIMINARY

- 2.1 The name of the association is Northside Adventure Gamers Association (abbreviated to NAGA).
- 2.2 The association is incorporated.
- 2.3 The association is established to be, and continue as, a charity.
- 2.4 These rules are intended to be binding on members of the association and enforceable by courts in Queensland.

Version 1.3 2 of 15

#### 3. \*ALTERATION OF RULES

- 3.1 Subject to rule 3.2 below, these rules may be changed, added to, or replaced by special resolution of the association's members at a general meeting. This includes a change to the association's name.
- 3.2 The members must not pass a special resolution that amends these rules if passing it causes the association to no longer be a charity.

#### 4. \*CHARITABLE PURPOSES AND NOT-FOR-PROFIT STATUS

- 4.1 The association will pursue the following charitable purposes:
  - To provide all members with the following
    - o An inclusive and accepting environment.
    - o A safe, friendly, and nurturing environment
    - o A reliable, regular, and secure location to meet.
    - o An accessible and clean location to meet.
    - o A social network that promotes fun, enjoyment, and good experiences
    - A social network that connects people with similar interests
- 4.2 The association may do all things that help it to achieve these purposes, in accordance with these rules.
- 4.3 The association and its committee may only do things and use the income and assets of the association (including those held on trust for the association or its purposes) for the purposes.
- 4.4 The association must operate consistently with legal requirements for registered charities.
- 4.5 The association must not distribute any income or assets, directly or indirectly, to its members.
- 4.6 Rule 4.5 does not stop the association from doing the following things, provided they are done in good faith (fairly and honestly):
  - paying a member for goods or services they have provided or expenses they have properly incurred at fair and reasonable rates or rates more favourable to the association, or
  - making a payment or providing a benefit to a member in carrying out the association's charitable purpose(s).

# INDEMNITY

- 4.7 To the extent possible under law, members (including committee members) are entitled to be indemnified out of the assets held for the association for any debts or liabilities incurred personally by a member when acting on behalf of the association, so long as the member was:
  - i. authorised by the association to take that action, and
  - ii. acting in good faith (fairly and honestly) and in the best interests of the association.

Version 1.3 3 of 15

- 4.8 This indemnity is a continuing obligation and is enforceable by a person even if that person is no longer a member of the association. This indemnity only applies to the extent that the person is not otherwise entitled to be indemnified and is not actually indemnified by another person (including an insurer under an insurance policy).
- 4.9 To the extent permitted by law, and if the committee considers it appropriate, the association may pay or agree to pay a premium for a contract insuring a person who is or has been a member of the association (including a committee member) against any liability incurred by that person as a member of the association (including as a committee member).

#### \* FUNDS AND ASSETS

- 5.1 The committee must establish policies about the holding and management of funds and assets on behalf of the association or its purposes, and that set out who oversees these funds and assets and who can make decisions about them.
- 5.2 The association must satisfy any obligations that apply to the use of assets over which a trust exists.
- 5.3 The association can receive funding from:
  - i. joining and annual membership fees
  - ii. donations
  - iii. grants
  - iv. fundraising
  - v. interest, and
  - vi. any other lawful sources approved by the committee that are consistent with furthering the association's purposes.

# 6. \* FINANCIAL YEAR

6.1 The financial year of the association is from 1<sup>st</sup> July to 30<sup>th</sup> June, unless the committee passes a resolution to change the financial year.

## 7. \* RECORD-KEEPING

- 7.1 The association must make and keep written financial records that:
  - i. correctly record and explain the association's transactions and financial position and performance, and
  - ii. enable true and fair financial statements to be prepared and to be audited.
- 7.2 The association must also keep written records that correctly record its operations and be able to produce these records if required by law.

Version 1.3 4 of 15

- 7.3 The association must retain its records for at least seven years, or as otherwise required by the ACNC Act or any other laws that may apply (for example, taxation law).
- 7.4 The committee members must take reasonable steps to ensure that the association's records are kept safe.

#### PRIVACY STATEMENT

- 7.5 NAGA requires members to register and provide personal information through the membership portal. We only do this:
  - i. to meet your needs (e.g. address you correctly)
  - ii. to meet our needs (e.g. legal obligations, contact information)
  - iii. as required by law (e.g. public liability)
- 7.6 NAGA membership data is stored on a secured server which requires a login and password to access.

  Only NAGA committee members have access to member data and only the NAGA President, Vice
  President, Treasurer and Secretary has access to change members data.
- 7.7 Use and disclosure of personal information. NAGA will not add you to a mailing list or give your personal information to third parties without your consent, unless required by law.

#### 8. \* CONTRACTS

8.1 As an incorporated association, the association can enter into contracts in its own name.

## 9. \* MEMBERSHIP

- 9.1 Anyone who supports the purposes and agrees to be bound by these rules can apply to join the association as a member. This association is inclusive of all peoples. Our mission is to help everyone find their place in the safe, friendly, and open gaming environment. This means we continually celebrate the diverse community different individuals cultivate. As an equal opportunity association, we stay true to our mission by ensuring that our game can be anyone's game.
- 9.2 The committee decides the process for receiving and approving or rejecting membership applications.
- 9.3 After the committee has approved or rejected a membership application, the committee must write to the applicant as soon as possible to tell them whether their application was approved or rejected. If an application is rejected, the association does not have to give reasons.
- 9.4 The committee can propose to set or change joining fees and membership fees for members. Joining and membership fee proposals must be approved by a majority of members voting at a general meeting.
- 9.5 Members must pay any membership fee and any unpaid joining fee at the time of submitting their membership form. If a member does not pay in time, their membership may be suspended by the committee. If the member does not pay all amounts owing within one month of their membership being suspended, their membership may be cancelled by the committee.

Version 1.3 5 of 15

- 9.6 When membership is suspended, a member cannot exercise their members' rights such as voting at a general meeting.
- 9.7 A person immediately stops being a member if:
  - i. their membership is cancelled under these rules
  - ii. they resign by writing to the committee, or
  - iii. they die.
- 9.8 If a member resigns, the association is not required to refund any joining and membership fees already paid.
- 9.9 Members must be 16 years or over. Children from 12 are welcome to attend "youth events" and in these events all children under 16 must always be supervised by a parent or carer.
- 9.10 Any acts of violence by members will result in immediate expulsion from the association and all fees will be non-refundable.
- 9.11 An aim of this association is to encourage positive behaviour towards others, acceptance of differences and diversity, and the promotion of our members to be of good standing within the organisation and within society generally both in person and while conducting themselves online. Consequently, anti-social behaviour in any form is not tolerated at any event or related activity pertaining to this association including, but not limited to, committee meetings and online forums (Discord). Breaching this condition will result in action from the association performed as soon as practicable after a complaint is received. This may include a warning to the offending member/s or removal from the association without refund of any paid fees. Any action taken is at the discretion of the committee. Anti-social behaviour includes, but is not limited to, excessive and unwarranted noise, assault, sexual assault, intimidation, threatening behaviour, abusive behaviour, damage to property, vandalism, stalking, or any behaviour as deemed inappropriate by the committee.
- 9.12 Any acts that cause discomfort to another member will result in a either a warning or instant removal from the association with all fees non-refundable. Repeated warnings for minor infractions will result in suspension of the perpetrator from association activities for a time defined by the committee. Further minor infraction behaviour will result in immediate expulsion from the association with all fees non-refundable.
- P.13 There are two levels of membership within the association: Standard Members and Voting Members. Each Standard Member (upon payment of membership) may choose to nominate themselves as a Voting Member in writing in an appropriate nomination form. This application is then put to a majority vote at the next committee meeting as part of a committee endorsed process. If successful, the Standard Member is upgraded to a Voting Member and has full voting rights within all official voting meetings and processes. At any stage, the committee may downgrade the membership status of a Voting Member to Standard Member through majority vote. Reasoning for this action may include, but not limited to, the Voting Member's behaviour or by breaching any rules contained in this document.

Version 1.3 6 of 15

#### 10. \* REGISTER OF MEMBERS

- 10.1 The association must maintain a register of members.
- 10.2 Members' names and contact details (an email address is sufficient instead of other contact details, if the committee approve this) must be entered in the register of members when membership is approved. A person becomes a member when their name is entered on the register.
- 10.3 The committee must record the date that a person stops being a member of the association in the register of members as soon as possible after the person stops being a member.
- 10.4 If a member requests that access to their details on the register of members be restricted, the committee may decide whether access will be restricted and will notify the member of this.

#### 11. \* MEMBERS' ACCESS TO DOCUMENTS

- 11.1 A member may make reasonable requests to inspect (at a reasonable time) the:
  - i. rules of the association, and
  - ii. general meeting minutes
- 11.2 A member may make reasonable requests for copies of the documents requested under rule 11.1. The association can charge a reasonable fee for providing copies.
- 11.3 Members may only use information that is accessed in accordance with rules 11.1 or 11.2 for lawful and proper purposes related to the association.
- 11.4 Subject to rule 11.5, the association must provide access to documents or copies requested under rules 11.1 and 11.2 within a reasonable time.
- 11.5 The association can refuse to provide access or copies, or provide only limited access, if the documents contain confidential, personal, employment, commercial or legal matters, or if granting the request would breach a law or could cause damage or harm to the association, or if the request is otherwise unreasonable.
- 11.6 Members cannot inspect or get copies of committee meeting minutes or parts of the minutes unless the committee specifically allows it.
- 11.7 Members can request access to their stored information at any time and request changes to this data at any time. Members must provide correct and accurate information by law.

Version 1.3 7 of 15

#### 12. \* THE COMMITTEE

- 12.1 The association is governed by the committee that is made up of committee members. The role of the committee is to ensure that the association is responsibly managed and pursues its purposes.
- 12.2 The committee can exercise all powers and functions of the association (consistently with these rules, relevant Australian laws and requirements for registered charities), except for powers and functions that the members are required to exercise at a general meeting (under these rules, relevant Australian laws or requirements for registered charities).
- 12.3 The committee can delegate any of its powers and functions to a committee member, a subcommittee, a staff member or a member, other than the power of delegation or a duty that applies to the committee or particular committee member under Australian laws.
- 12.4 Committee members are elected by a ballot of members of the association at a general meeting.
- 12.5 The committee is made up of a minimum of three committee members.
- 12.6 At the first committee meeting after each AGM, the committee must appoint a committee member as Chair.
- 12.7 The committee may appoint and remove committee members to and from any positions (such as Chair, President, Deputy President, Treasurer and Secretary) and decide their responsibilities in those roles.
- 12.8 Each committee member finishes their time on the committee at the end of the next AGM after they were appointed, but they can be elected again.
- 12.9 A member can nominate to be on the committee by writing to the committee or at a general meeting where an election for the committee is held. Another member must support their nomination.
- 12.10 To be eligible to be a committee member, a person:
  - i. must not be ineligible to be a responsible person under the ACNC Act
  - ii. must be nominated under rule 12.9
  - iii. must give the association their signed consent to act as a committee member of the association, and
  - iv. must be a member of the association at the time of their nomination, appointment, and for the duration of their time on the committee.
  - v. must be 18 years or older
  - vi. must not have a criminal conviction
- 12.11 If the number of eligible applicants nominated to be committee members is equal to the number of committee members required, the chair may declare the positions filled without holding a ballot.

Version 1.3 8 of 15

- 12.12 A committee member stops being on the committee if they:
  - i. resign by writing to the committee
  - ii. stop being a member of the association
  - iii. are removed by a resolution of members of the association
  - iv. are absent without the consent of the committee from all meetings of the committee held during a period of one month
  - v. become ineligible to be a responsible entity (committee member) under the ACNC Act, or
  - vi. die
- 12.13 If a committee member stops being on the committee before the next AGM, the committee can temporarily appoint a member of the association to fill the vacancy on the committee until the next AGM. For all intents and purposes this "temporary" committee member has the rights of the position they are filling.

#### 13. \* DUTIES OF THE COMMITTEE

- 13.1 Among its other responsibilities, the committee is responsible for making sure that:
  - i. accurate minutes of general meetings and committee meetings are made and kept
  - ii. other records are kept in accordance with rules 7.1 to 7.4, and
  - iii. documents of the association are made available to members in accordance with rules 11.1 to 11.6.

#### 13.2 Committee members must:

- i. comply with their legal duties under Australian laws and ensure that the association complies with its duties under Australian laws, and
- ii. meet the requirements for responsible entities (committee members) of registered charities and comply with the duties described in governance standard 5 of the regulations made under the ACNC Act which are:
  - a. to exercise their powers and discharge their duties with the degree of care and diligence that a reasonable individual would exercise if they were a committee member of the association
  - b. to act in good faith (fairly and honestly) in the best interests of the association and to further the charitable purpose(s) of the association set out in rule 4,
  - c. not to misuse their position as a committee member
  - d. not to misuse information they gain in their role as a committee member
  - e. to disclose any perceived or actual material conflicts of interest
  - f. to ensure that the financial affairs of the association are managed responsibly, and

Version 1.3 9 of 15

- g. not to allow the association to operate while it is insolvent.
- 13.3 For clarity, rule 13.2(ii) is intended to require compliance with the ACNC governance standards as amended or modified from time to time.

#### 14. \* COMMITTEE MEETINGS

- 14.1 A committee member can call a meeting by giving seven days' notice of a meeting to committee members unless the meeting is an urgent meeting (in which case reasonable notice must be given).
- 14.2 The committee can decide how often it meets, and the way in which it meets, including by allowing committee members to attend through technology, so long as it allows everyone to communicate.
- 14.3 The Chair will chair committee meetings. If the Chair does not attend, the committee members can choose who will chair that meeting.
- 14.4 A resolution is passed if more than half of the committee members voting at the committee meeting vote in favour of the resolution.
- 14.5 A majority (more than half) of committee members must be present (either in person or through the use of technology) for the meeting to be validly held (this is the quorum for committee meetings).
- 14.6 The committee can allow circular resolutions. To pass a circular resolution, each committee member must agree to it in writing, including by email or other electronic communication, and it is passed once the last committee member has agreed to it.

#### 15. \* GENERAL MEETINGS OF MEMBERS

- 15.1 General meetings of members can be called by the committee. The committee must call a general meeting if requested by a group of members making up at least 10% of members who are entitled to vote at general meetings. The members must state in the request any resolution to be proposed at the meeting.
- 15.2 If the committee does not call and hold a meeting where requested to do so under rule 15.1 within two months of the request, 50% or more of the members who made the request may call and arrange to hold a general meeting. The meeting must be held within three months from the time the request was made and as far as possible, should follow the procedures for calling general meetings set out in these rules. The members are entitled to claim any reasonable expenses that they incur in calling the meeting from the assets of the association.
- 15.3 At least 25% of the members that are entitled to vote at the meeting must be present at a general meeting (either in person or through technology that allows for clear and simultaneous (interactive) communication of all meeting participants, for the meeting to be held (this is the quorum for general meetings).
- 15.4 Written notice of general meetings must be provided to all members (and the association's auditor or reviewer, if one is appointed) at least 21 days before the meeting. Notice to members must be sent to the members' contact addresses listed on the register of members.
- 15.5 Any notice of general meetings must include the meeting details (including whether the meeting is to be held in two or more places and the technology that will be used to facilitate this), proposed issues to be discussed and resolutions to be moved at that meeting.

Version 1.3 10 of 15

- 15.6 The association must hold its first AGM within 18 months of being formed. After that the association must hold an AGM at least once in every calendar year, at which it provides reports to members about the financial position and activities of the association.
- 15.7 The ordinary business of the AGM is to confirm the minutes of the previous AGM, receive reports and statements on the previous financial year, and elect committee members. The notice of the AGM must include any special business or resolutions to be considered.
- 15.8 A group of at least 10% of members who are eligible to vote at a general meeting can propose resolutions to be voted on at a general meeting by writing to the committee advising them of the proposed resolutions, so long as requirements to notify members of the resolutions prior to the general meeting can be met (which will depend on the type of resolution proposed).
- 15.9 Any resolution proposed under rule 15.8 must be considered at the next general meeting held no more than two months after the date the committee is notified of the request to present a resolution to members. This rule does not limit any other right that a member has to propose a resolution at a general meeting.
- 15.10 The Chair (see rule 12.6 and 12.7) will chair general meetings. If the Chair does not attend, the members at the meeting can choose another committee member to be the chair for that meeting. The Chair is responsible for the conduct of the general meeting, and for this purpose must give members a reasonable opportunity to make comments and ask questions (including to the auditor or reviewer (if any)).
- 15.11 Each member has one vote.
- 15.12 A resolution (other than a special resolution) is passed if more than half of the members present at a general meeting vote in favour of the resolution.
- 15.13 Votes may be held by a show of hands or written ballot, or another method that the chair decides is fair and reasonable in the circumstances. If a vote is held initially by show of hands, any member can request a vote be held again by written ballot. If a vote of the members is tied, the chair of the meeting does not have an additional, deciding vote and shall declare that the motion has failed.
- 15.14 The chair can adjourn the meeting if there are not enough members at the meeting (a quorum see rule 15.3) within 30 minutes of the meeting start time, or if there is not enough time at a meeting to consider all business. A new notice must be sent to members for the adjourned meeting (but does not have to comply with time for notice requirements, unless the adjourned meeting is more than 21 days after the original meeting date). Only unfinished business may be dealt with at a resumed meeting. The chair must adjourn the meeting if a majority of members entitled to vote at the meeting direct the chair to do so.
- 15.15 On a show of hands, the chair's decision is conclusive evidence of the result of the vote.
- 15.16 The chair and the meeting minutes do not need to state the number or proportion of the votes in favour or against on a show of hands.

Version 1.3 11 of 15

#### **DISPUTE RESOLUTION PROCESS**

- 15.17 If there is a dispute between a member or committee member and:
  - i. one or more members, and
  - ii. one or more committee members

the parties (the people who disagree) involved must first attempt to resolve the dispute between themselves within a period of at least 14 days from the date the dispute is known to all parties involved.

- 15.18 If the dispute cannot be resolved between the people involved, the committee must be notified, and a dispute resolution process must be put in place by the committee. The committee may develop a policy regarding dispute resolution.
- 15.19 A dispute resolution process must allow each party a reasonable opportunity to be heard and/or submit arguments in writing and should first attempt to resolve the dispute by the parties reaching agreement. If agreement cannot be reached, the committee may appoint an unbiased person to decide the outcome of the dispute. The unbiased person may be a member, non-member or professional mediator who is not connected with the dispute, or the people involved in it.

#### **DISCIPLINING MEMBERS**

- 15.20 The committee can take disciplinary action against a member of the association if it considers the member has breached these rules or if the member's behaviour is causing (or has caused) damage or harm to the association. The committee must follow a disciplinary process in accordance with rule 15.23. The committee may choose to adopt a more detailed discipline policy, dealing with issues such as rights to appeal.
- 15.21 Disciplinary action can include warning a member or suspending or cancelling the member's membership. It cannot include a fine. Membership cannot be suspended for more than 12 months.
- 15.22 The committee must write to the member to tell them why they propose to take disciplinary action.
- 15.23 The committee must arrange a disciplinary procedure that meets these requirements:
  - i. the outcome must be determined by an unbiased decision-maker (who cannot be a committee member),
  - ii. the member must have an opportunity to explain or defend themselves, and
  - iii. the disciplinary procedure must be completed as soon as reasonably practical.
- 15.24 The committee must notify the member of the outcome of the disciplinary procedure as soon as reasonably practical.
- 15.25 There will be no liability for any loss or injury suffered by a member as a result of a decision made in good faith (fairly and honestly) under rule 15.23.

Version 1.3 12 of 15

#### 16. \* WINDING UP

- 16.1 The association can be wound up by its members if the members pass a special resolution to wind up the association at a general meeting.
- 16.2 If the association is wound up, after it has paid all debts and other liabilities (including the costs of winding up), any remaining assets:
  - i. will be tallied in value by the committee and where possible distributed to the members or former members of the association in equal value, or
  - ii. subject to the requirements of Australian laws and any Australian court order, be distributed to another organisation or other organisations with similar purposes, which is/are charitable at law, and which is/are not carried on for the profit or personal gain of members.
  - iii. if the association is wound up, all Intellectual Property becomes the property of the founding President of the Association.
- 16.3 In making distributions upon winding up, the association must satisfy any obligations that apply to assets over which a trust exists.

#### 17. \* SPECIFIC ASSOCIATION RULES

- 17.1 Addition of rule 12.14 detailing the committee positions as follows and their additional duties (beyond rules 13.1 to 13.3):
- 17.1.1 President (mandatory)

The President is responsible for the overall strategy, direction and running of the association. This involves strategising on how to grow the association, guiding its direction and overall purpose and overseeing the well-being of all members. The President is considered the Chair for all meetings unless unavailable. The President (with the Vice President) is also responsible for organising and carrying out a yearly Audit of all finances and assets of the association.

#### 17.1.2 Vice-President

The Vice President fills the role of the President when unavailable and is governed with the same tasks as the President involving strategy, direction and day to day running of the association. When the President is unavailable the Vice-President becomes Chair for all meetings. The Vice President (with the President) is also responsible for organising and carrying out a yearly Audit of all finances and assets of the association.

Version 1.3 13 of 15

#### 17.1.3 Treasurer (mandatory)

The treasurer is primarily responsible for the day-to-day financial management of the incorporated association. The treasurer must:

- \* keep and maintain an asset register for the incorporated association.
- manage the petty cash balance and ensure the petty cash book is kept up to date.
- keep all documentation for payments made including receipts, invoices, and statements.
- keep and maintain the incorporated association's deposit and cheque books.
- ensure all payments are approved or ratified by the management committee and are recorded in the minutes.
- \* keep all financial records in Queensland.
- keep either a receipt book of consecutively numbered receipts, or computer system records of them.

#### 17.1.4 Secretary (mandatory)

The secretary is primarily responsible for managing the records of the incorporated association.

The secretary will also:

- take and keep minutes for the incorporated association's meetings.
- keep the register of members.
- take nominations for the management committee.
- provide appropriate notice to members for meetings.
- call and convene special general meetings.
- arrange the meeting venue and prepare the agenda.
- coordinate any correspondence or reports to be presented at meetings.
- circulate the minutes of meetings to members.
- complete any actions arising from meetings that require correspondence.
- receive all incorporated association correspondence and bring urgent.
- \* matters to the attention of the president or treasurer if necessary.

#### 17.1.5 Marketing Co-Ordinator

The Marketing Co-Ordinator's responsibilities lie in marketing the association to the committee. This involves social media management, correspondence with other associations and groups with similar interests and strategising ways to increase membership and improve outcomes for members.

#### 17.1.6 Event Co-Ordinator

The Event Co-Ordinator's tasks involve organising the day-to-day events and helping find participants for events that are looking for members. This also includes co-ordination with the Marketing Co-Ordinator involving events with other associations and groups with similar interests. This also involves organising an online schedule of events to be available to all members.

Version 1.3 14 of 15

#### 17.1.7 Grants Co-Ordinator

The Grants Co-Ordinator role involves constant review (in consultation with the Treasurer) of the financial position of the association and ways to improve its financial position. This also involves searching government (both local and federal) institutions for grants that the association can apply for to supplement its financial position and benefit all members.

# 17.1.8 Support Officer

The committee support person is a role used to help out all other existing committee positions with a wide range of tasks assigned to it. This role does not have access to the sensitive information that President, Vice-President, Treasurer or Secretary has but may be used to complete tasks allocated by these positions plus all others (e.g. Events, Grants, Marketing).

#### 18. MEMBERSHIP FEES

- 17.2 Each member will pay a yearly fee of \$50. This fee consists of administrative costs for securing a regular venue along with public liability insurance and association running costs including any equipment.

  Pensioners receive a 25% discount on the yearly fee only making the total yearly fee \$37.50.
- 17.3 The cost per session if a member plays/participates in a game is \$5. Those who attend but do not play/participate must pay \$2. Game Masters who run a session play/participate for free. If, however, the Game Master does not run the game they volunteered to run, they may still play/participate as a player in a game that does run but do so at the normal fee (e.g., \$5).
- 17.4 Non-Members who have attended are obligated to pay \$10 for each session they attend after the first or join the association. Non-Members who join in a session play the association fee (\$5) for that session.

Version 1.3 15 of 15